CITY OF SYLVAN LAKE
REGULAR MEETING
MARCH 8,2006

A Regular Meeting of the Sylvan Lake City Council was held on Wednesday, March 8,
2006, opening at 7:35 p.m. Mayor Lorenz presided over the Pledge of Allegiance.

Present: Hunger, Hungerman, Lorenz, Conkey, Eriksen,
Absent: None
Also Present: City Manager Martin, Clerk Clippert and City Attorney Bibeau

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by Eriksen, seconded Hunger, to approve the City Council Agenda for March 8,
2006, as presented.

Yes: All
No: None
MOTION CARRIED

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Moved by Hunger, seconded Eriksen, to approve the minutes of February 8, 206 Regular
meeting as submitted.

Yes: All

No: None
MOTION CARRIED

APPROVAL OF DISBURSEMENTS

F-001-05
Moved by Eriksen, seconded Hunger, to approve the voucher report for March totaling
$116,800.71.

February Payroll $46,268.10 Check #'s 9818-9857

Accts Pay-Feb 67,484.91 Check # s 40912-40955
Auto Debits 3,047.70
$116,800.71
Yes: All
No: None MOTION CARRIED



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

ACCEPTANCE OF REPORTS

Mayor Lorenz received the Public Works Department and the City Attorney's reports for the
month of February 2006, the Police Department report for January 2006, the audit report for
fiscal year ending June 30, 2005 and asked that they be placed on file.

Committee Reports

There were no reports.

BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Mayor Lorenz opened the meeting to the public.

P1-003-06
Mike Ramel, 2365 Renfrew, stated he has been working with the police department on a noise
problem on Renfrew. He asked how to go about getting a noise ordinance established. He
complained of loud mufflers and music. He stated if an ordinance is adopted it would help the
police. Neighbor s are afraid to complain because of retaliation.

Hunger asked if anybody has spoken with the parents. Ramel stated he has. The father wasn t
very receptive. Hunger stated he needs to call when the noise is happening. Ramel
acknowledged that is what the police told him, but he feels they would be gone by time the police
get there.

Martin stated there is a nuisance ordinance. This is the first he has heard of this and he will talk
with the Chief.

Leonard Schlicht, 1759 Stratford, presented a letter to each council member and stated they had
an excessive amount of water coming into their sump. They have spoken with the DPW, the City
Manager and Councilman Hungerman regarding their problem. They feel they haven t gotten a
satisfying answer. Their sump pump is new, but they are concerned with power going out.

Lorenz stated it is not a drainage problem. Martin added, nothing was backed up. It was winter,
the ground is hard and the water could go into it. There was no water in their basement, it was in
the their sump.

Hunger informed them because their pump is new it may be running at a higher CFM.

Conkey shared some of his problems he has experienced and suggested they get a water driven

2



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

sump. Virginia Schlicht stated it cost $1000. Conkey stated he would put them in contact with
cheaper plumber.

Lorenz thanked for their letter and asked them to keep them abreast of the situation.

Helen McAllister announced the Memorial Parade Committee needs someone to be Uncle Sam
and Lady Liberty. She explained the Foster s have moved and left the costumes with her. Martin
stated she could bring the costumes to City Hall for storage.

McAllister also stated she has noisy cars from 9-11 p.m. on Lakeland.

There were no other comments

Mayor Lorenz closed this portion opened to the public.

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS

Martin announced it is Eriksen s birthday and wished him a Happy Birthday.

Memorial Day Parade
Jim Bull will be chairing it again this year. It will be Monday, May 29" and take the normal
route. He asked residents to watch for more information in their newsletter.

Water Meter Installation
The DPW is down the about 25 meters left to install.

Home and Garden Club
Mark your calendar for June 17" third annual Home and Garden Tour. Watch for more
information in the newsletter.

Restroom
Martin reported they are working on trim and rough electrical. It is going very well. They will
be waiting for warmer weather to do plumbing.

Storm Lift Station
Martin conveyed during the heavy rain the pumps keep up. The ditches were filled on Woodrow
Wilson showing there was a lot of water.

Mailbox Covers
The DPW has replaced 14-15 now.



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

Contracts
Martin is working on getting prices for Garbage and Rubbish and lawn mowing. He asked to
contact them it they are interested in extending their contracts.

Electronic Newsletter

Martin asked everyone to sign up for the electronic newsletter. The goal is to get more
information to the residents and quicker. Reminders such as taxes or water bills due are being
sent out also.

Dock Renewals

Paperwork and fee must all be in by March 15". Martin reminded dock holders are not allowed
to have outstanding debt with the city when getting a dock space.

CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS

Conkey informed Martin there are still black silt covers over some of the storm drains. He asked
if the DPW can drive around and clean them out. He stated there is a light out in Ferndale Park
and asked if the police could patrol the park area more. He stated on weekends cars are flying
through.

Hungerman apologized for being late. He expressed his thoughts on the Citgo property and feels
they are close on agreeing. He informed the Schlicht s he did check on the dug up area on
Briarcliff and Renfrew. The area was dug up because of a water main break there. Martin will
check to see if the main break was at the same time they had their problem.

Eriksen thanked everyone for their happy birthday wishes. He also believes Citgo is moving
along. He is concerned with the car activity. They currently have six pumps which allows six
cars to be serviced. He stated the three new pumps can still service six cars, adding one more
will increase the traffic flow by 33%. He feels the traffic study is critical. He will not vote for
special use approval until he is sure the traffic problem is eradicated there.

Eriksen discussed protocol, asking for the resignation of appointees. He suggested doing on a
private basis. Lorenz asked for this to be put on the study session agenda.

Hunger reminded appointed boards, those are recommending boards. They make
recommendations to City Council only.

Hunger expressed his views on Citgo. Council still needs answers from Citgo. They have asked
the Yaldoo s for a traffic study because the Yaldoo s disagreed with the one the City s Planners
provided. He feels there is responsibility on the owner to answer Council s requests.

4



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

He shared Detroit City Council approved increasing suburban water rates and not Detroit
residents.

He asked everyone to support the Sylvan Shuffle. Groups can get their logo on the t-shirt.

Lorenz stated Planning Commission is still working on the Master Plan. A board was on display
showing concepts for Orchard Lake Road, how it could look. He asked residents to come to the
Planning Commission meetings to discuss and give their input; their comments are appreciated.

Lorenz attended the Pontiac School Round Table this week. They have an 18 mill levy expiring
the end of this year for non-homestead property. They are planning on putting this on the ballot
in November to renew. Pontiac Board is currently having all of their excess property appraised.
City Hall did spend a letter to the Pontiac School Board to consider them as an interested

purchaser for the Whitfield property. That doesn t necessarily mean the City will be buying the

property.

He commented on the new agenda, old/new business and stated this allows them to be aware of
what is going on.

OLD BUSINESS

a. Right-of-Way Policy S-005-06

Martin reported Planning Commission is working on a new policy, which will address
landscaping, planters and the appeals process. Council will need to decide who is going to sit on
the Appeal Board and the criteria for appeal.

Lorenz added, Planning Commission discussed having no obstruction closer than 8 feet from the
road. They will also look at above grade landscaping in the road right-of-way and parking areas
that are currently non-conforming. How to maintain them or having them torn out.

Eriksen feels the City needs to accommodate the pre-existing conditions for landscaping closer
than 8 feet. Conkey s understanding was, they are only concerned with boulders. Hunger
thought they are trying to prevent anymore from happening. He is concerned with drainage
function and public safety. He doesn t recall the goal being everyone having grass to the road
and he doesn t want to push residents out of the city because of this.

Martin reminded them the purpose of the old ordinance was to get residents into compliance over
a certain number of years.

Lorenz asked Council to forward their thoughts on this to Martin so he can take them to Planning
Commission.



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

ZP-005-06
b. Special Land Use Request for 2451 Orchard Lake Rd. Citgo Gas

Lorenz informed, he received a call from Laith Yaldoo and they spoke on an individual basis. He
wasn t representing Council or anybody else. Lorenz shared his list of 21 items, which included
Planning Commission s recommendations.

Eriksen believes this is an issue between the planners and developers and the proper process has
not been followed.

Lorenz reviewed what has gone on with Citgo, Planning Commission and City Council. He
stated Planning Commission approved the special use with 18 items. These items where worked
on with the Planners. Lorenz stated it is now up to City Council to approve or deny the special
use.

Eriksen questioned what site plan the Yaldoo s submitted to the State. Martin had no idea what
was given to the State. He informed him a stop work order has been placed on the site. They
still need an approved site plan from the City first.

Conkey acknowledged he could approve the special use so they can continue with their site plan.
He realized there are a lot of things that need to be corrected before they can approve the site
plan.

Hungerman clarified for the residents a special use approval is needed in order to have a gas
station there. If no improvements are made they can still use it as it currently exists.

Lorenz read the list which he provided to Laith Yaldoo. He would like to add to the list a penalty
for not removing the tank farm. He also would like to act on this tonight.

Bibeau provided if they are attempting pumps that can pump from both sides then it will increase
the use.

Hunger stated he would like to work this out. He agrees they have got to move one way or the
other. He didn t understand why they are discussing this when they asked for this to be tabled.
He feels Council is doing their homework for them.

Lorenz stated he would like to approve the special use only, with conditions and then it is up to
the Yaldoo s from there.

Eriksen would like to understand the reciprocal cross access. It is not a road and not a safe
condition. He feels they should not allow cross access. If they satisfy the parking requirements
then they won t need it.



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

Lorenz suggested adding the traffic study to the conditions. He asked council if they would like
to hold a special meeting to finalize this.

Conkey agreed with Eriksen to get rid of the cross access. He feels four pumps are fine and
typical of a gas station. The problem Citgo has now is customers can t pay outside.

Bibeau suggested making it a condition that the pumps have to have working credit card

payment. He also doesn t believe Council should lead them on by granting the special use if they

have a problem with the building location on the plan. Martin suggested the motion to include
not based on site plan previously submitted.

Lorenz addressed the variance issue and stated council needs to decide if they are going to grant
any variance. He feels he could grant a variance because of the shape of the property and the trail
it backs up to.

Eriksen would like to get public input before deciding on a variance. Lorenz recalled Planning
Commission already holding a public hearing.

Lorenz read Martin s revised condition, this special approval in no way implies a variance will
be granted on the property.

Hungerman stated he is not comfortable with approving anything tonight, too much has been
added and removed. He is in favor of a special meeting.

Eriksen would like to add to the conditions the Yaldoo s pay all fees for Planners and legal
counsel that this project has accrued to date. Martininformed him it is part of the site plan, but it
is good to reiterate.

Lorenz asked Martin to work with Bibeau on the list of conditions and give them to the Yaldoo s
before the public hearing. Eriksen stated he would like to work on it also. He agreed he could
live with four pumps subject to a traffic study.

c. Community Center CC-004-06
Lorenz updated, Rob Galecz is working on numbers along with Russ Meskin and Jim Cassar.
Galecz reported he got generic prints and is working on getting figures for Council. Lorenz and

Galecz agreed to meet next Wednesday night.

Lorenz informed everyone, Zilka is testing the Community Center and will be providing a report
in about a week.



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

d. Blight Ordinance 0-001-06

Lorenz stated Planning Commission pretty much agreed on the blight ordinance. Eriksen added
there needs to be some controller word added. Lorenz agreed and said that is where Planning
Commission got hung up.

Eriksen discussed a State Amendment, which covers right to privacy in your home. Residentially
owned and occupied structures are different. Residents are going to be sensitive to this and it
needs to be included in the ordinance. Bibeau will look into this. He wasn t familiar with it.

Martin will work on this and have something for the study session and then it can get back to the
Planning Commission.

e. Rental Ordinance 0-002-06
Lorenz announced the Planning Commission didn t agreed on this and no progress was made.
He shared the items he could live with, registration of rental property, having owners sign
affidavit for smoke alarm and making sure it is a single-family property.

Eriksen would like to work with Hunger in developing a proposal for council to vote on.

Conkey stated he is not in favor of this ordinance and doesn t believe there is a problem. He
would like to remove it from the agenda.

Hunger acknowledged they possibly don t need the ordinance right now, but believes it is
important for council to know how many rentals are in the city. He won t support removing it.

Eriksen stated there is State Statue, which covers rental ordinance. Lots of communities have a
rental ordinance. They need some control.

Conkey stated most communities in Oakland County don t have a rental ordinance. Ifthey do it
is because of blight areas. Sylvan Lake is well below the normal in the number of rentals with
only 6%.

Hungerman added he is opposed to a rental ordinance at this time. He doesn t see a reason why
they need it. In looking at the agenda he feels they need to prioritize and rental is at the bottom
of his list.

Eriksen would like to set a fine for failing to register.



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

Lorenz stated he is interested in single-family houses not being turned into multi family houses.

Lorenz asked Hunger to work with Eriksen and Martin to develop an ordinance. Martin will
have it ready by the study session and then they can have it ready to go to Planning Commission.

Moved by Conkey, seconded Hungerman, to remove the rental ordinance from the old
business agenda.

Yes: Hungerman, Conkey
No: Lorenz, Eriksen, Hunger
MOTION FAILED

f. Restroom Facility Installation at Ferndale Park and Security

Already covered under City Manager comments.

g. Master Plan
Already covered under Lorenz Council comments.

Z-002-06
h. Zoning Ordinance Amendment Defining Makeup of Zoning Board of Appeals

Martin reported, Planning Commission did accept the verbage. Council will need to decide when
they want to enact. When they enact it there has to be five people in place right away. He
suggested they go through appointing five and sending them to the ZBA class then enacting the
ordinance.

Eriksen has wrestled with the five-person appointment by City Council. They are not elected, not
accountable and can become a rogue board. He suggested making the terms two years instead of
three. Bibeau informed it is State Statue that provides for three-year terms. They start out staged
and then go to three years after that. Bibeau stated Council can remove an appointed member for
cause. Eriksen asked if the statue provides what cause is. Bibeau stated it is up to City Council
at the time of removal.

Conkey feels all appointed are accountable to City Council. Council doesn t have to reappoint
them if they are not happy with them.

Bibeau suggested enacted the ordinance with an effective date of July 1, 2006. This would give
adequate time to appoint and some them to a class.



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

Lorenz stated he will ask Planning Commission to move along with the Public Hearing.

i. Brownfield Development Authority ~ ZP-006-06

Lorenz reviewed the city would be giving up tax dollars in developing this and they are not in
favor of this.

Hunger is proud of City Council for coming up with the idea and looking at trying it even though
it didn t work out.

Moved by Eriksen, seconded Hunger, to remove the creation of a Brownfield Development
Authority from the agenda.

Yes: All
No: None
MOTION CARRIED
0-003-06
j.  Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance Defining Maximum Lot Coverage and Accessory
Structures

Martin reported this awaits Planning Commission s recommendation. It wasn t initiated by City
Council. Planning Commission is having a problem with percentage of coverage. The Planners
are trying to help, but they are not willing to pull a magic number out. They will work on it again
next month.

Eriksen would like to keep this on the agenda. He would like to know all the discussion. Lorenz
asked Council to let Martin know if they had any thoughts on the percentage.
k. Pet Ordinance 0-004-06

Martin has had some communication with Oakland County Humane Services regarding a
County-wide ordinance. He is not sure how long before this will happen.

Moved by Hungerman, seconded Conkey to remove the Pet Ordinance from the agenda.
Yes: All

No: None
MOTION CARRIED

10



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

I. City Entrance/ldentification Signs M-003-06
The concept is being worked on and then it will come back to City Council.
At 9:49 p.m. Council recessed. At 9:53 p.m. Mayor Lorenz called the meeting back to order.
Eriksen believes Planning Commission is confused about their responsibilities. Martin agreed
and stated Planning Commission was reminded they don t decide expenses.

m. City Manger Review A-002-06
Lorenz discussed the evaluation forms. Hungerman stated he hasn t seen the documents yet and
he can t comment on them until he sees them. Lorenz asked Council to review the forms and
possibly come up with a revised one.

n. City Millage/Funding

Martin met with Schimmel. He will be providing a report for Council soon.

NEW BUSINESS

a. Consideration to Approve City Hall Fee Schedule A-003-06

Council made a few changes to the proposed schedule and discussed vendors and issuing tickets
when doing business without a license.

Moved by Eriksen, seconded Hungerman, to approve the City Clerk Schedule of Fees as
amended.

Yes: All
No: None
MOTION CARRIED

b. Consideration to Approve Building Permit Fee Schedule B-001-06

Martin noted under building bonds there should be a fee for $15,000 and up. He asked Council
to leave this up to him to add this in. Council discussed the actual building permit fee based on
estimated value of structure. Eriksen suggested adding language to this, supported by two

11



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

different sources, subject to City Manager and Building Officials final audit prior to C of O.

Moved by Conkey, seconded Hunger, to approve the Building Permit Fee Schedule as
amended.

Yes: All
No: None
MOTION CARRIED

o

Consideration to Approve Mechanical Permit Fee Schedule
Consideration to Approve Electrical Permit Fee Schedule B-002-06
e. Consideration to Approve Plumbing Pemit Fee Schedule

o

Moved by Eriksen, seconded Hunger, to approve the Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing
Permit Fee Schedule as presented.

Yes: All
No: None
MOTION CARRIED

T-001-06
f. Consideration to Approve Poverty Guidelines for Board of Review

Moved by Eriksen, seconded Hunger, approve the poverty guidelines, using the Federal
Standards provided.

Yes: All
No: None
MOTION CARRIED
g. Set Budget Study Session Date for 2006-07 Budget

Council agreed to meet at the next study session, March 28" at 6:30 p.m.

12



City of Sylvan Lake
March 8, 2006

NEWSLETTER AND CABLE INPUT

Discussion of signs at entrance to the city, Beach Ball report and Home and Garden Tour.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Eriksen, seconded Hunger, to adjourn the regular City Council Meeting.
Yes: All
No: None

MOTION CARRIED

The meeting was adjourned at 10:26 p.m.

Dennise Clippert, City Clerk

13



